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P R O C E E D I N G S 1 

------------------------------------------------------ 2 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 3 

  My name is Joe Preston.  I have the 4 

fortunate or unfortunate, I guess, to be Chairman of 5 

the Consumer Affairs Committee.  We are here today on 6 

the hearing of House Bill 1821 by Representative 7 

Shimkus.  What I would like to do, and we'll have 8 

members introduce themselves.  There are members I 9 

know coming from Lehigh County.  We were in session, I 10 

guess, last night 'til about 8:30 or 9:00.  So that 11 

kind of prohibited some situations because I had 12 

planned on coming up here and having dinner in your 13 

area last night.  So if we'll start to my right or 14 

your left, and we'll introduce a very good friend or 15 

your friend, or as we say, your employee. 16 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 17 

  Good morning.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 18 

I'm Representative Frank Andrew Shimkus.  Of course, 19 

we're in the 113th District, my legislative district, 20 

and I'm honored to have this Committee hearing in 21 

Clarks Summit. 22 

  CHAIRMAN GODSHALL: 23 

  And Representative Robert Godshall from  24 

Montgomery County. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 1 

  Staff? 2 

  MR. SMELTZ: 3 

  Jake Smeltz.  I'm the Executive Director 4 

to the Committee from the Republican Caucus. 5 

  MS. DAVIS: 6 

  Gail Davis.  I'm the Executive Director 7 

from the Democratic Caucus. 8 

  MR. ORTH: 9 

  Robert Orth.  I'm the Committee Intern. 10 

  MS. SANTORO: 11 

  Marci Santoro.  I'm the Committee 12 

Secretary. 13 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 14 

  That's who I really work for.  There have 15 

been an awful lot of issues that we've done over in 16 

the Consumer Affairs Committee and before my partner 17 

over here, who came from another Committee to come 18 

over here.  We've looked at these issues for quite a 19 

while.  And an awful lot of people been dealing with 20 

the Consumer Protection Acts that we have to really 21 

look at and effectively be able to represent our 22 

constituents across the state.  Clearly it's about 23 

time.  We have moved bills in the past that have 24 

gotten to the Senate.  Perhaps this time we'll be able 25 
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to move this particular bill out of the House and 1 

through the Senate and then we'll knock on their 2 

doors, as I say, the upper chamber.  With that being 3 

said, I'd like to recognize Representative Shimkus for 4 

a few comments. 5 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 6 

  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and welcome, 7 

ladies and gentlemen.  I think House Bill 1821 is 8 

something that is necessary to protect part of the 9 

American dream, and that is getting into home.  The 10 

bill was sparked by an incident in my legislative 11 

district where we had a new home builder who was 12 

arrested and charged in connection with ripping off 13 

some people who had provided him money.  One of the 14 

problems that complicated it was that he was a member 15 

of the Better Business Bureau.  And so when people 16 

wanted to seek out a home builder, you know, it seemed 17 

like everything was in line, and yet people lost a lot 18 

of money.  And so it was as a result of series of 19 

reports in the media, especially the Scranton Times 20 

Tribune, that I introduced House Bill 1821 and I'm 21 

honored to have the Committee here to hear testimony.  22 

  House Bill 1821 creates the New Home 23 

Construction Consumer Protection Act.  It regulates 24 

home construction contracts, requires registration of 25 
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certain home builders, including industrialized and 1 

mobile home builders, and establishes, and I think 2 

this is a key part of it, two elements: the Home 3 

Builders' Guaranty Fund within the State Treasury to 4 

try and make whole people who may lose money, if 5 

someone falls through the cracks, and creates a new 6 

class of criminal offense, which is home construction 7 

fraud.  The New Home Construction Consumer Protection 8 

Act provides for the regulation of home builder 9 

contracts, for the registration of certain home 10 

builders, for the payment of a $300 registration fee 11 

and then a renewal fee based on the number of homes 12 

you built.  And that would help go into the managing 13 

and processing of this home guaranty fund.   14 

  I think the other thing that is 15 

interesting here is that we are also requiring the 16 

Bureau of Consumer Protection in this registration to 17 

take a lot of information on the home builders and to 18 

create a toll-free hotline, and to put out brochures 19 

so that people who are interested in building a home 20 

have one clearing house where they can go and say, 21 

this is a licensed, registered, checked out home 22 

builder, and we know that they can then shop with a 23 

little bit of peace of mind if they're looking to 24 

build a home.  I will be happy to answer any questions 25 
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during the hearing or to add my two cents as the 1 

people testify.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 2 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 3 

  Thank you.  We've also been joined by 4 

another member who's close by.  Introduce yourself. 5 

  REPRESENTATIVE BRENNAN: 6 

  Representative Brennan, 7 

Lehigh/Northampton County. 8 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 9 

  And think what's important when we look 10 

at this issue --- and I'm from Allegheny County, the 11 

Pittsburgh area.  All to often, you're going to have  12 

--- and I know from hearing from the District 13 

Attorney, too many people are getting taken advantage 14 

of.  And it's just too easy for people to 15 

reincorporate themselves.  And out of our area, we've 16 

had people who have been charged, ordered to pay, that 17 

have four different companies and live in an $800,000 18 

home and they're driving by the peoples' houses that 19 

they've taken their money from.  So that's where we're 20 

going to go.  First we're going to have Andrew 21 

Jarbola, III, District Attorney from Lackawanna 22 

County.  Glad to have you, sir. 23 

  MR. JARBOLA: 24 

  Thank you.  Good morning. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 1 

  It's always an honor to be around and I 2 

feel safe with the District Attorney all the time. 3 

  MR. JARBOLA: 4 

  Good morning, Representative Preston, 5 

Representative Godshall and Representative Brennan and 6 

the others members of the House Consumer Affairs 7 

Committee.  My name is Andy Jarbola.  I'm District 8 

Attorney here in Lackawanna County.  I've been in the 9 

DA's Office for approximately the last 22 years and 10 

I've been the District Attorney for the last eight.  11 

  Before beginning my testimony, I would 12 

like to thank the members of the Committee for calling 13 

this hearing to address the significant issues 14 

regarding the regulation of home construction in 15 

Pennsylvania.  My office continues to receive numerous 16 

complaints from homeowners who have lost thousands of 17 

dollars to home builders who have not completed work, 18 

who have never begun to work.  And of greater 19 

misfortune is the fact that many of these people, 20 

because of the area that we live in, are elderly, who 21 

have trusted the contractors and ended losing 22 

thousands of dollars of their savings.   23 

  I would like to express my gratitude to 24 

Representative Frank Shimkus for his immediate focus 25 
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on this issue because of the nature of the case that 1 

he spoke about earlier.  I would also like to thank 2 

the House Delegation of Lackawanna County for their 3 

support on this issue.  I, as well as the 4 

Representatives, recognize that a majority of the home 5 

construction professionals and the contractors are 6 

very well qualified and reputable.  Most of them 7 

support some type of legislation of their industry 8 

because of the fact that the disreputable members of 9 

that industry cast a bad light on the whole body of 10 

the industry itself.   11 

  Currently there is no provision in the 12 

law to allow criminal charges to be brought for the 13 

actions contemplated in House Bill 1821.  Therefore, 14 

it is imperative that the Legislature recognize the 15 

great need to seriously consider passage of this bill. 16 

Prosecutors at this time are unable to protect their 17 

community from those actions of disreputable and 18 

fraudulent contractors who work in such ways to bilk 19 

honest citizens out of their hard earned savings.  The 20 

laws that involve theft and fraud require, at this 21 

time, elements to be proven which are either 22 

nonexistent or difficult to discern in the area of 23 

construction contracts.   24 

  For example, currently there are judicial 25 
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opinions which exist that prohibit findings of guilt 1 

in theft cases if a contractor has begun work, 2 

received money and then fails to complete the project 3 

unless the Prosecutor's Office can specifically prove 4 

at the inception of the contract, the contractor's 5 

intention was to take each of those actions and was to 6 

deceive the consumer by doing so.  In a 7 

contractor/consumer matter, that evidence is almost 8 

impossible to prove.  Therefore, the gap that 9 

currently exists in the law requires the passage of 10 

Bill 1821 in order to protect the large block of 11 

citizens that enters into construction contracts on a 12 

daily basis.  Otherwise, we as prosecutors will 13 

continue to be unable to protect this vast segment of 14 

the population.  15 

  My testimony will focus on two specific 16 

areas regarding House Bill 1821 as it pertains to the 17 

establishment of the new offense of home construction 18 

fraud.  First, it appears that the offense is limited 19 

to contracts for new home construction and does not 20 

contemplate contracts for home improvements.  While 21 

there's certainly a need to address new home 22 

construction, many of the complaints received by my 23 

office and other DA's offices across the state of 24 

Pennsylvania pertain to consumers who have contracted 25 
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for improvement of their homes.  This is especially so 1 

with the elderly population of the State of 2 

Pennsylvania.  It is rare for a senior citizen to 3 

enter into a contract to construct a new home.  4 

However, it is quite common for them to contract for 5 

new roofs, porches, remodeling and similar home 6 

improvements.  This clause in the home construction 7 

fraud offense allowing for an increase in grading for 8 

consumers over the age of 60 would almost seem to me 9 

to be moot if the offense does not contemplate home 10 

improvements as well as new home construction.   11 

  Second, in reviewing the limitations on 12 

compensation to consumers via the Home Builder 13 

Guaranty Fund, I would suggest setting a limit based 14 

on the percentage of loss rather than a specific 15 

limitation of $30,000 for one claimant and $200,000 16 

for multiple claimants who have the same contractor.  17 

The reason for my concern is the fact that 18 

Representative Shimkus mentioned a case that occurred 19 

in my office from consumers involved in actions taken 20 

by a local contractor.  His action would seem to fit 21 

under the proposed House Bill 1821.  Each of the 22 

claimants in that particular case suffered losses well 23 

in excess of $30,000.  And if you totaled them up, it 24 

would come close to or even exceed over $1,000,000.   25 
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  If this law had been enacted when they 1 

suffered their losses, the cap on recovery from the 2 

fund would not even begin to compensate them for their 3 

financial injury.  In addition, the current state of 4 

that contractor's business does not make recovery via 5 

a lawsuit very viable.  Therefore, those individuals 6 

will be completely dependent on such a fund if it had 7 

been available to them at the time of their loss.  8 

While I understand that such cases are rare and I 9 

understand the need to prevent depletion of the fund, 10 

it would appear that a percentage of loss would be a 11 

more equitable manner in which to make some effort to 12 

justly compensate consumers.   13 

  In closing, I would want to thank and 14 

commend the members of this Committee for their 15 

attention to this serious issue and for their 16 

responsiveness in light of the cases that currently 17 

exist in our area.  And I am open to any questions or 18 

concerns from the Committee. 19 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 20 

  Representative Shimkus. 21 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 22 

  District Attorney Jarbola, I just want to 23 

point out to you that you're 100 percent right.  We 24 

are aware that home improvements need to be covered as 25 
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well.  And there is a companion bill that has been 1 

introduced by Representative Keith McCall out of 2 

Carbon County that goes along with this to deal with  3 

home improvement contractors.  So that is being 4 

addressed and it will come under the umbrella of this 5 

fraud issue.  But I'm curious.  The people involved in 6 

this specific case which sparked this, is there any 7 

reasonable expectation that they will get any of their 8 

money back? 9 

  MR. JARBOLA: 10 

  As far as I'm concerned, probably 11 

nothing.  The individual that was involved, his 12 

business is basically in bankruptcy.  He's currently 13 

facing a number of criminal charges that are pending 14 

before the courts of this county.  At some point in 15 

time in the very near future, we hope to go to trial 16 

against that individual.  And it would seem to me that 17 

looking at his financial status at this point in time, 18 

the losses that they suffered would certainly --- they 19 

would never recover the financial loss that they 20 

incurred.   21 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 22 

  The bill also gives offices like yours 23 

more authority, more information to investigate.  24 

Would that be a burden on your office?  I mean, is 25 
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there something that needs to be done in companion 1 

with this to help? 2 

  MR. JARBOLA: 3 

  Personally, I think it would be a benefit 4 

to all DA's offices across the state.  Every DA's 5 

office in every county has what is called a Private 6 

Complaints Department.  And most of the cases that 7 

come to our offices come to us by way of a private 8 

complaint.  And you have to understand that at that 9 

point in time, that's probably the most important 10 

thing going on that particular individual's life.  11 

Here they contracted for a new home or remodeling or 12 

for home improvements.  And under the current state of 13 

the law, it's very difficult for someone like myself 14 

or someone in my office to look them straight in the 15 

eye and say, I'm sorry.  As the law exists right now, 16 

we can't proceed.  And the information that would be 17 

able to be supplied to us as a result of House Bill 18 

1821 will certainly help investigators and/or 19 

prosecutors throughout the Commonwealth. 20 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 21 

  Just one more question and that is, when 22 

a contractor, a new home builder registers with the 23 

Bureau of Consumer Protection in this registration 24 

form for a $300 fee, they have to provide all kinds 25 
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information on their partners, whether or not they've 1 

had any criminal problems in the past, whether or not 2 

they have been denied the right to build under federal 3 

or state contracts, all kinds of information, and it 4 

goes back ten years.  Is that enough? 5 

  MR. JARBOLA: 6 

  I believe so.  Yes, sir. 7 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 8 

  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 9 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 10 

  Representative Brennan?  Chairman 11 

Godshall?   12 

  CHAIRMAN GODSHALL: 13 

  Down in my neck of the woods, I haven't 14 

really had a lot of problems with the first part, with 15 

the new home builders.  My problem has been more on 16 

the other side with the home improvement people.  And 17 

we've had tons of those over the last number of years. 18 

But I am quite familiar with the Pocono areas, you 19 

know, down in Stroudsburg areas.  I know what they've 20 

had.  And that's with the new home builders, you know, 21 

down there.  It's been immense over the years, the 22 

fraud and what's happened in some of those 23 

developments down there.  So I would agree with you 24 

that when you say we can't proceed, then the question 25 
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to you is, why not, you know, and why will --- the law 1 

isn't there, well, why not, you know.  People just 2 

don't understand that. 3 

  MR. JARBOLA: 4 

  No, they don't, sir.  In order to prove 5 

theft, you have to actually show the intent to deceive 6 

or the intent to defraud at the time they entered into 7 

the contract.  And before the passage --- or before 8 

anything like this bill, it was almost impossible to 9 

prove, especially in cases where the contractor had 10 

begun some type of work and had accepted some portion 11 

of the money.  The courts and the decisions that have 12 

been rendered by the courts in this Commonwealth 13 

indicate, well, that's not a criminal matter.  It's a 14 

civil matter.  And I think with the information that 15 

would be supplied as a result of this particular bill, 16 

it would help prosecutors to show circumstantially to 17 

a certain extent that, you know, maybe it was the 18 

intent of the home builder or the home improvement 19 

contractor to bilk these people out of money.   20 

  And I agree with you, sir, that a vast 21 

majority of the cases that come through my doors are 22 

home improvement individuals.  I think that's where 23 

the more shady characters are or the shady contractors 24 

exist in the area of home improvement.  In our county, 25 
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we have been fortunate enough to only have a couple 1 

new home construction builders that we had 2 

investigated in the past, where as you indicated, I 3 

know the Attorney General of Pennsylvania specifically 4 

went after a number of construction companies in the 5 

Poconos for fraudulent behavior. 6 

  CHAIRMAN GODSHALL: 7 

  In Bucks County, neighboring Bucks County 8 

to my Montgomery, I was just recalling an incident in 9 

the newspaper down there of, I guess, three homes that 10 

the guy goes in, digs a hole, puts a basement in it 11 

and then walks away.  And the total, I think, the 12 

people were out at that point was about a half million 13 

in those three homes.  And it was large homes.  It was 14 

unbelievable.  And how people can tie themselves up 15 

sometimes with these people who have really no track 16 

record as far as building a half a million dollar 17 

home, you know, is inconceivable to me, but they do it 18 

and it's done every day. 19 

  MR. JARBOLA: 20 

  Well, in this particular case we were 21 

talking about, as Representative Shimkus indicated, 22 

the contractor, I think, had a very good gift of gab. 23 

He was able to sell himself to the individuals and he 24 

had no paperwork to back up his credibility.  And I 25 
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think for a homeowner or new home builders, if they 1 

had this information available to them, they would 2 

have looked at the fact that this individual was 3 

previously prosecuted in Monroe County.  And 4 

therefore, I think probably 100 percent of the 5 

individuals never would have went to this person if 6 

they had that information available to them at the 7 

time. 8 

  CHAIRMAN GODSHALL: 9 

  Thank you. 10 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 11 

  Follow-up questions? 12 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 13 

  I just want to make a statement and heavy 14 

comment out of it, if you would.  The real spirit of 15 

this bill is to protect the consumer in any way 16 

possible.  Now, obviously, sparked by the situation 17 

here where the headquarters of the home builder who is 18 

being charged in question here was a nice location, 19 

you know, he had that infamous Better Business Bureau 20 

sticker, you know.  And so the consumer would 21 

naturally think, well, everything's in line here.  And 22 

so the purpose of this is to have that registration 23 

with the Attorney General where almost like a licensed 24 

state inspection sticker, you know, that somehow 25 
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they've gotten some state scrutiny here and also that 1 

toll-free number.  There's one other aspect, and that 2 

and that is the brochure that must be printed with the 3 

Consumer's Bill Of Rights.  Now, I'd just like you to 4 

comment on that based on the local incident.  And 5 

also, I'm just wondering, are we entering into a more 6 

risky period now as we get into a recession or more 7 

difficult economy? 8 

  MR. JARBOLA: 9 

  Well, obviously, sir, if we're entering 10 

into a recession, they think, you know, money is not 11 

as available if the situation were different.  And as 12 

I indicated earlier, the more information available to 13 

a consumer for them to know what rights they have and 14 

where they can look for information certainly would be 15 

a benefit to any community and to any person looking 16 

for that information. 17 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 18 

  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 19 

  CHAIRMAN GODSHALL: 20 

  I just want to throw something in.  The 21 

normal people just have at tendency to trust somebody, 22 

especially if --- you say, well, he has a gift for gab 23 

out there, but it's normally, you know, somebody comes 24 

up to me and talks to me, you trust them.  When you 25 
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don't have any information relating to that person, 1 

it's just what people normally do.   2 

  MR. JARBOLA: 3 

  I think you are correct.  I think it's 4 

human nature for someone to trust somebody, especially 5 

if on all outward appearance they look reputable; they 6 

have a nice new home themselves.  This individual 7 

bragged about the homes that he had built.  And 8 

without them knowing or seeing it themselves, they 9 

have nothing to do but trust the individual.  And I'm 10 

sorry to say that after a few short months, they 11 

learned the hard way. 12 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 13 

  Thank you.  What's really interesting 14 

about this bill, a lot of people are always paying 15 

attention to repair homes.  And I've got some people 16 

who can't retire right now because they have to pay 17 

off kitchens and things that were not finished.  But 18 

let's also remember that not all the homes are 19 

$400,000 or $800,000.  There are ones that go for 20 

$75,000 to $150,000 that people have retired and 21 

bought.  And whether it's a duplex or they're asking 22 

for things, part of the problem that we've had is the 23 

keeping up or tracking because people come into your 24 

district from other counties.   25 
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  And this bill will give you a source to 1 

be able to look at, as your people do, where red flags 2 

are coming up.  You know, it's hard to tell someone, 3 

you know, don’t deal with anybody that only has a 4 

metal sticker on their van when they come by and ask 5 

you if you want to do this or they come to your house 6 

and they pull off, you sign a contract and then maybe 7 

next week he's out and he has another company.  This 8 

is part of the problem.   9 

  Do you have any suggestion on --- if you 10 

have any other positive suggestions --- you're the 11 

legal expert and I'm far from being an attorney.  If 12 

you have different thoughts, please submit them to the 13 

Committee.  This is very important.  You are 14 

protecting the people.  We're trying to reinforce you. 15 

How do you track --- unless someone calls you, how do 16 

you track some of the people that come here from --- 17 

some from out of state because they're also close  18 

to ---. 19 

  MR. JARBOLA: 20 

  There really was no way to track them.  21 

To have a registry, I think, would be beneficial.  If 22 

they're coming from anywhere, they're going to do 23 

business in the State of Pennsylvania, they have to 24 

register.  And I think one of the other suggestions I 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

22

would make is the fact that a contract should be 1 

entered into.  I mean, I could think of one specific 2 

incident when family member of mine had an oral 3 

agreement with a contractor and my family member got 4 

bilked out of a few thousand dollars themselves.  And 5 

I got so angry at him.  I said, why don't you have a 6 

written contract?  Well, I didn't think I needed one. 7 

Well, now, what do you think? 8 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 9 

  Sounds very familiar.  I'm from a small 10 

town called Vandergrift, Pennsylvania where we had 11 

5,000 people.  And I grew up with, you know, if you 12 

shook your hand or if you nodded and said everything 13 

was okay, you just trusted that was going to be.  And 14 

that's no longer the case.  And now when you're seeing 15 

some of the senior citizens who are downsizing homes, 16 

in other words, their kids are all gone and 17 

everybody's --- they're buying a smaller home.  And 18 

they're going on a more fixed income.  They're the 19 

ones also getting more so, because they haven't bought 20 

a home in a while and now you have all these 21 

professionals who are coming in who are scamming 22 

people. 23 

  MR. JARBOLA: 24 

  Correct. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 1 

  If we can develop this registry and work 2 

on this and hopefully get this out of the House, I 3 

would appreciate if you would send us a letter.  Also, 4 

contact your association, the District Attorneys' 5 

Association, which we will be talking with just as 6 

well.  It's more than just a protection.  It would 7 

also help --- people will be able to have a remedy, 8 

financially, in a sense.  Now, there are going to be 9 

some members that remember we discussed these before 10 

in the previous bills when they've looked at this 11 

particular fund that we have to try work with, but I 12 

think that it gives the contractors an incentive to be 13 

able to clean themselves up just as well. 14 

  MR. JARBOLA: 15 

  That's correct, sir. 16 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 17 

  So if you have any suggestions, I really 18 

appreciate your time.  And I apologize for being late. 19 

Please don't fine me.  20 

  MR. JARBOLA: 21 

  That's okay.  Mr. Godshall kept us 22 

interested. 23 

OFF RECORD DISCUSSION 24 

  MR. JARBOLA: 25 
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  Thank you. 1 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 2 

  Thank you.  Next we have Ken Kurtz, who 3 

is president and CEO of Ken Kurtz Builders.  Mr. 4 

Kurtz, please come forward.  For the record, you can 5 

start off --- I would appreciate it if you would 6 

identify yourself so she can record your name.  And 7 

whenever you see fit, get started.  As you can see, 8 

we're just a good happy family here. 9 

  MR. KURTZ: 10 

  Morning, Chairman Preston and members of 11 

the Consumer Affairs Committee.  My name is Ken Kurtz. 12 

I'm the owner of Ken Kurtz Builders.  I reside in 13 

Greenfield Township, Lackawanna County.  My company 14 

builds new houses as well as remodeling, additions and 15 

home repair.   16 

  I am here to testify on behalf of the 17 

Pennsylvania Builders' Association in opposition to 18 

House Bill 1821.  This legislation would require home 19 

builders to register with the Attorney General and it 20 

would create a Home Builder Guaranty Fund.  This 21 

legislation is similar to Senate Bill 100 and House 22 

Bill 507, which create a state registration system for 23 

home improvement contractors.  Pennsylvania Builders' 24 

Association agreed to the registration of home 25 
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improvement contractors after extensive negotiation. 1 

We did so because it has been demonstrated that there 2 

is a sufficient number of problems with fraudulent and 3 

incompetent home improvement contractors.  We realize 4 

consumers do not have sufficient protection from 5 

futile local registration ordinances and under 6 

existing state laws, particularly because home 7 

improvement contractors are excluded from the 8 

compliance with the Uniform Construction Act, Act 45 9 

of 1999.   10 

  New home builders, to the contrary must 11 

comply with Act 45.  This law establishes basic 12 

construction standards statewide.  It protects 13 

consumers by assuring that their projects are built 14 

properly and under recognized construction standards. 15 

Act 45 also requires that construction projects are 16 

inspected by properly trained and certified building 17 

code officials.  Occupancy permits or completion 18 

certificates are issued as part of the building permit 19 

process.  All municipalities require these.  And if 20 

the municipality is fulfilling its responsibilities, 21 

the consumer is protected.   22 

  PBA continues to believe that public 23 

education of Pennsylvanians is the most thorough 24 

approach to combat home builder and home repair fraud. 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

26

PBA has actively ongoing efforts to educate 1 

Pennsylvanians, which we developed in coordination 2 

with then Attorney General Mike Fisher.  We've been 3 

working on this a long time.   4 

  PBA and its 39 affiliated local 5 

associations reach out to residents to help them hire 6 

a reputable builder.  Each year builders' associations 7 

provide thousands of Pennsylvania families with 8 

brochures for hiring reputable builders and 9 

contractors.  Consumers frequently visit the PBA 10 

website for information about building and remodeling 11 

projects.   12 

  In similar legislation, which affects 13 

home improvement contractors, Senator Tomlinson, his 14 

staff, the Attorney General and his staff listened to 15 

the concerns of the housing industry and our thousands 16 

of small home improvement contractors.  Senate Bill 17 

100, compromise legislation, is the result of many 18 

hours of negotiation last year.  It fairly balances 19 

the needs of housing consumers and our contractors.  20 

PBA has opposed home improvement contractor 21 

legislation for more than 12 years because a balance 22 

could not be achieved.  Senate Bill 100 in its current 23 

form achieves that balance.  We have come to the 24 

reluctant agreement that that case has been made for 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

27

the need of registration of home improvement 1 

contractors in Pennsylvania.  We believe that the 2 

General Assembly needs to first focus on passing that 3 

legislation, Senate Bill 100.  We believe that no case 4 

has been made for the need to register new home 5 

builders, as there is no broad based abuse reported.  6 

We believe that the need for state government 7 

oversight of new home builders is unnecessary.   8 

  PBA does support penalty increases 9 

against fraudulent builders and contractors, including 10 

higher penalties when contractors act in bad faith as 11 

exits in House Bill 1821.  We would suggest 12 

Representative Shimkus and his Committee consider 13 

creating a new bill amending Title 18 of the Criminal 14 

Code with those provisions.  Quite simply, the bad 15 

guys deserve punishment, but not at the cost of good 16 

builders.   17 

  We object to requiring a Home Builder 18 

Guaranty Fund.  We object, and I say it again, we 19 

object to the requiring of a Home Builder Guaranty 20 

Fund.  Taking money from good, honest home builders to 21 

pay for the mistakes of incompetent and crimes of the 22 

scam artists.  This provision contained in HB 507 but 23 

not in Senate Bill 100 is the only issue holding up 24 

passage of a home improvement contractor registration.  25 
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  Reputable builders acting in good faith, 1 

operating with Workers' Compensation insurance and 2 

building to the code standards established in Act 45, 3 

we pay $50 for each construction building permit 4 

issued.  Consumers hiring registered contractors would 5 

pay an extra $50 to compensate consumers who fall 6 

victim to scam artists mainly because the victims fail 7 

to screen contractors and verify credentials and check 8 

references.  Thank you for allowing me to speak today. 9 

I would be happy to answer questions. 10 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 11 

  Representative Shimkus? 12 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 13 

  Good morning, Mr. Kurtz.  Thank you for 14 

your testimony.  You know, I understand what you're 15 

saying, that there's a few bad apples that are 16 

spoiling the bunch here.  And you have a reputation in 17 

this area as being, you know, a fine home builder, 18 

good reputation and no problems at all.   19 

  MR. KURTZ: 20 

  Thank you. 21 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 22 

  But when you say that we believe that no 23 

case has been made for the need to register new home 24 

builders, I disagree.  And I think in this area, this 25 
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case that we have talked about with the DA, has --- I 1 

mean, I'm sure you have received calls on it.  I mean, 2 

it just brought this issue to the forefront and I have 3 

received numerous calls from people who have lost 4 

money to new home builders.   5 

  My concern is that I don't see how a 6 

reputable home builder, that's you, has anything to 7 

lose.  Because, I mean, there is the $300 fee for the 8 

registration, but I think the benefits of that would 9 

actually go to your business because people would be 10 

able to check with the Attorney General and say, oh 11 

yeah, Ken Kurtz, we know locally he's got a fine 12 

reputation, but he's also been checked out by the 13 

Attorney General, Bureau of Consumer Protection.  And 14 

so just like the times have changed and the Keith 15 

McCall bill and the Senate Bill are now --- you know, 16 

that PBA's has approved them, I think the time has 17 

come where we need that kind of clearing house.  And 18 

I'd like your comments on that. 19 

  MR. KURTZ: 20 

  Well, I think as far as a new home 21 

builder, I kind of feel that I’m already registered. 22 

When I go to get a building permit, I fill out 23 

building permit, you have my name, you have my 24 

business location, you have my address, you have my 25 
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phone numbers.  I have to provide you with my 1 

insurance certificates, I have to provide you with my 2 

Workers' Compensation certificates.  I mean, I'm 3 

pretty much registered.  I mean, I think you have a 4 

lot of goods on me.  You have a lot of information on 5 

me.  6 

  When I read your bill, I mean, really the 7 

only other thing that you're asking for is a 8 

disclosure, have I ever been convicted of fraud, and I 9 

think a simple thing to do, my own personal idea would 10 

be to put that on a building permit.  I mean, I would 11 

have no problem checking another question at the 12 

bottom of the building permit.  Have I ever been 13 

convicted of fraud, yes or no, please explain.  If you 14 

have, have something that goes directly to the 15 

Attorney General. 16 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 17 

  I could only think that if this bill were 18 

in place before this court case, before the arrest, 19 

before all the media attention on what happened here, 20 

that even the Better Business Bureau would be able to 21 

call this toll-free hotline and say, we have a 22 

contractor that wants to register with us.  I mean, 23 

that was kind of embarrassing.   24 

  But your line here that says, consumers 25 
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who fall victim to scam artists mainly because the 1 

victims fail to screen contractors, verify credentials 2 

and check references, the problem is I don't know that 3 

the average consumer can go back ten years and check 4 

companies under various names and different partners, 5 

silent partners; whereas you have the Attorney General 6 

that can do that and issue some kind of a registration 7 

and say, Ken Kurtz, reputable builder, no problem.  8 

Been in business, you know, for a billion years and, 9 

you know, fine reputation.  I don't see how that does 10 

anything but protect the consumer.  And I think in 11 

talks with the PBA, I think that they have at least 12 

heard that.  They may not have endorsed it, but 13 

they've at least heard that argument.   14 

  MR. KURTZ: 15 

  Well, I think my idea of fraud --- I 16 

really don't see the connection with fraud and 17 

registering or --- you know, I've heard the mumblings 18 

around that we're not licensed.  But actually, the 19 

Building Code checks out licensing as far as I'm 20 

concerned, because licensing --- if I had to go get a 21 

license, I'm sure you'd guys would come up with a test 22 

that I have to take.  Railing has to be 36 inches 23 

high.  If you know the Building Code, you're going to 24 

pass the test and get a license.   25 
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  I don't think there's really a connection 1 

between fraud and a license, or fraud and a 2 

registration, because these smooth talkers, they're 3 

going to get a license.  You know, if they can't get 4 

it, they're going to hire a construction manager 5 

that's going to take the test, get the license and 6 

they're going to find a way to get registered.  Where 7 

fraud comes into play is these consumers aren't 8 

educated enough and, you know, PBA will work with 9 

anybody to try and educate consumers.  We have 10 

brochures, how to hire a reputable contractor.   11 

  The problem of fraud comes in when the 12 

contract is signed and these smooth talkers out there 13 

can talk you out of a $60,000 deposit.  I mean, that 14 

is just unbelievable and they're doing it.  I mean, 15 

you know the stories.  They're capable of doing it.  I 16 

don't think the fraud is connected to licensing.  You 17 

know what I'm trying to say? 18 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 19 

  I do.  And, you know, it's a hard 20 

concept.  But I know that over the years, you have 21 

seen the look on somebody's face when they walk into 22 

that finished home.  I mean, that's got to be one of 23 

the top ten experiences of their life, you know.  But 24 

I'm thinking of the poor people here who have called 25 
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and said, you know, we put down $60,000 or DA Jarbola 1 

testified that the losses total a million dollars.  2 

What do they do?  I mean, to us it's a million 3 

dollars, it's $300 that's the issue.  But to them it's 4 

a shattering of a dream.  And this home guaranty fund 5 

at least provides something that will try and say, you 6 

know, we're trying to help. 7 

  MR. KURTZ: 8 

  Well, I'll just speak to that issue.  As 9 

a builder, times are tough.  Times are tough for us. 10 

You know, we bid materials.  By the time we go to buy 11 

them, the materials are up.  Fuel, you know, I can't 12 

survive driving a hybrid.  You know, I put $80 in my 13 

trucks three times a week.  It's tough.  Insurances 14 

are up, Workmen's Comp is up.  And the last thing in 15 

the world we need to do is be pouring money into a 16 

fund to help people that were victimized by a scam 17 

artist.   18 

  And I think education --- the number one 19 

thing to solve this problem is education.  We have to 20 

somehow educate the consumers on how to deal in a 21 

contract and a business transaction with a contractor. 22 

It's wrong to give somebody $60,000 down.  It's wrong 23 

for them to give them the first payment.  Say $50,000 24 

for a framing that's not completed, you know, they 25 
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need to know that those things are wrong.  That's 1 

where the fraud comes in. 2 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 3 

  Thank you very much for that.  I will 4 

seriously consider your input.  Thank you. 5 

  MR. KURTZ: 6 

  Thank you. 7 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 8 

  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 9 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 10 

  Representative Brennan? 11 

  REPRESENTATIVE BRENNAN: 12 

  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Mr. Kurtz, 13 

thank you for your testimony.  Just a couple of points 14 

that I want to make.  First of all, the situation with 15 

the people making these down payments, that obviously 16 

you wouldn’t recommend or you wouldn't ask for as a 17 

reputable builder, but it's very similar to --- we're 18 

also hearing a lot now nationally and in Pennsylvania 19 

about mortgages and the mortgages that people are 20 

taking and have taken.  And essentially, as 21 

Representative Shimkus alluded to, this is a very big 22 

moment in their life.  And I purchased a home, my wife 23 

and I, just a few years ago, and quite frankly, didn't 24 

do the homework I should have in terms of --- it's 25 
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working out well, but many times people jump into 1 

these things because they're looking at the end 2 

product.  They're not looking at the details in 3 

between.  They're signing --- agreeing to mortgages 4 

that --- with payments that quite frankly anybody 5 

would know they're not going to be able to make and  6 

we're fixing that crisis now.   7 

  You suggest increasing the penalties.  8 

And we just heard from the DA, if PBA does support 9 

increases against fraudulent builders and contractors, 10 

including higher penalties, that does nothing, though, 11 

for the consumer who may, in fact, have bid out, 12 

whether it's $30,000, $50,000, $60,000, $1,000,000, 13 

whatever the case is.  And again, I think the point of 14 

this legislation is --- obviously, it impacts the 15 

builders, as you testified to.   16 

  But the consumer finds themselves --- 17 

they're never going to get that back.  This at least 18 

allows them the opportunity --- and I agree with you. 19 

It's unfortunate.  But there's need to be some 20 

protections out there for consumers.  And clearly 21 

you're going to wind up passing this cost on.  So it's 22 

going to be paid for.  It's obviously just another 23 

cost, like you said, the fuel.  But you would agree 24 

you would pass this cost along to your ---? 25 
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  MR. KURTZ: 1 

  Well, we would have to, but this goes 2 

back to the affordable housing, you know.  Housing's 3 

going up, up, up and everybody's saying, well, we've 4 

got to bring housing down, we've got to bring housing 5 

down, and this isn't helping that issue.  And the 6 

point I was bringing up about the more --- what 7 

happened was, you know, people are being convicted in 8 

other counties and, you know, they're being slapped on 9 

the hand and changing their name and moving to another 10 

county.  And that's for Mr. Shimkus' bill.  And I 11 

think will eventually in the long run help consumers 12 

because we can --- maybe we can stop these guys from 13 

doing that.  I mean, that's another major issue.  We 14 

have to stop these guys from changing their name and 15 

jumping to another county. 16 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 17 

  Mr. Kurtz, let's look at this now.  It 18 

seems that part of the bill as well as both the House 19 

and the other Senate bill you kind of agree about.  20 

Let me tell you how this could help you.  And I 21 

understand the issue because I've dealt with this over 22 

the last couple of years about the fund.  Every one of 23 

these towns charges you a fee when you go to get your 24 

permit; correct?  $50 to $150, somewhere ---? 25 
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  MR. KURTZ: 1 

  It depends.  I've paid up to $1,500 to 2 

$2,000. 3 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 4 

  Get out of here.   5 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 6 

  Same as down my way. 7 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 8 

  And one of the things I've heard over the 9 

years, and I'm not saying --- we have an awful lot of 10 

small towns, we're saying whether it's townships or 11 

boroughs, and they only have a limited amount of staff 12 

even if they subcontract out.  Part of the problem 13 

we've heard is whether or not the inspections really 14 

do happen.  That's been a continuous situation, I've 15 

heard.  Now, I'm not saying with you or in this area, 16 

but it's an awful lot in the towns.   17 

  Now, one of the things we're looking at 18 

is possibly putting caps on it, because the towns are 19 

making money.  It's going into their general fund.  20 

But whether or not the actual inspections that you're 21 

paying for happen to be able to protect your 22 

reputation along with other people, this guaranty 23 

fund, it can work with the things that they charge.   24 

  And along with this guaranty fund, let me 25 
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show you how this helps your business.  If you're one 1 

of the best, let's say if there's ten contractors in 2 

like a table and, you know, if everybody says they're 3 

the best contractor in this town, the best contractor 4 

in this county, the best contractor in the United 5 

States, the best contractor in the world, but you can 6 

say you're the best contractor at this table.  Some of 7 

these people who are being ripped off, who's going do 8 

the work if there's money to be able to fix it?  The 9 

good contractors are going to get that work.  You see 10 

what I'm talking about?  So there's a plus and a minus 11 

and I understand.   12 

  But let's look at this $50, not just to 13 

protect the good and the bad.  And I understand that 14 

it goes for --- you say that it goes for bad.  But no, 15 

it goes people who have been unfortunate, but at the 16 

same time, it means they have the wherewithal to take 17 

a good contractor to be able to finish the work and to 18 

be able to do it right.  So who's going to benefit 19 

from it, the good or the bad contractors? 20 

  MR. KURTZ: 21 

  Well, I understand that point. 22 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 23 

  I'm just throwing this out as we can try 24 

to work with it.  Because again, I mean, $1,500? 25 
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  MR. KURTZ: 1 

  Yes. 2 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON:  3 

  And I continuously hear from citizens 4 

when we went across the state a couple years ago that 5 

there was no real record of some of the inspections 6 

that should have been done.  It's in different states 7 

of finality.  Meanwhile, some of the people that 8 

bought those mortgages, the paper's already been sold 9 

to another mortgager.  So that's part of the problem 10 

that we have.  And I'm asking, you know, what do you 11 

thing about it from your standpoint?  Because if 12 

you’re the best builder, who are they going to pick? 13 

That's $50 a year, and you have to just get one every 14 

two years; okay? 15 

  MR. KURTZ: 16 

  I understand your logic.   17 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 18 

  I just want to whet your appetite just a 19 

little bit to compromise with us a little bit. 20 

  MR. KURTZ: 21 

  I'm open for compromise.  But on the 22 

other hand, you know, most home builders, you know, 23 

they're low key regular guys, honest guys, hard 24 

working people trying to make a living.  And when we 25 
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see the flashy guy out there that has a radio show and 1 

gold plated trucks, you know, and then we're being 2 

asked to contribute into a fund that protects people 3 

that fell for those lines, you know, fell for his line 4 

of bull, my pride is hurt a little bit that you're 5 

asking me to pay money to put in that fund. 6 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 7 

  A lot of the ones that we see, yes, they 8 

may have the flashy clothes, but when they're dealing 9 

with the people, they don’t have those cars and they 10 

don't have those clothes on.  Okay.  And I understand. 11 

But we're talking about $50.  And when you're thinking 12 

--- about you're paying and a lot of different towns, 13 

like you said, up to --- you know, amount of money for 14 

the inspection, and it's going into --- you know, you 15 

probably deal with, what, 20 or 30 different towns 16 

around this area?  And you're paying that registration 17 

for each one of them.  And so is someone else.  And 18 

the inspections aren't really happening.   19 

  And it's my opinion that because I think 20 

one of the bills would almost basically eliminate and 21 

prohibit that fee --- we're asking you to consider the 22 

$50 in that.  I'd like you to just really think about 23 

what I'm talking about and what that does.  And maybe 24 

it doesn't have to be, I think, what is it, every 25 
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quarter?  Maybe we can change that around a little 1 

bit.  You get what I'm talking about?   2 

  The issue is to try to be able to create 3 

a fund to be able to protect those citizens who have 4 

been taken advantage of, at the same time, to have a 5 

more of a central registry that when you go into a 6 

town, your reputation, you don't have to defend 7 

yourself.  You don't have to wait on paper.  They can 8 

call and they'll --- that's my guy.  You see what I'm 9 

talking about?  That's part of the issue that you 10 

wouldn’t have to worry about that.  So that's part of 11 

the things that I'd like to get in touch with you a 12 

little bit later.   13 

  But think about that type of perk, 14 

because, you know, you run into a lot of guys that 15 

have been to 50 or 80 different towns.  And all of 16 

these different towns have different building codes.  17 

Nothing's really consistent nowadays.  Okay.  So you 18 

know when you have the people, again, coming from 19 

outside of state, changing the different names, 20 

putting it in his daughter's name, putting it in is 21 

wife's name, you know, putting it in his  22 

brother-in-law's name or there's a new sign going up, 23 

you know, when you say going out of business, that's 24 

part of what we want to be able to prohibit.   25 
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  And I'm not saying it has to be $200 a 1 

year.  There's always an area for compromise.  But if 2 

you're paying these fees into all of these different 3 

towns, and the towns, in a sense, are making money --- 4 

and I'm not going to not going to knock 5 

municipalities.  But all I'm asking you to do is just, 6 

please, just think about this and think about if 7 

you're the best at that table, who they're going to 8 

call. 9 

  MR. KURTZ: 10 

  You make a good point.  I understand. 11 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 12 

  And if you have a problem, let me know, 13 

and I'll give you the reference and I'll help --- take 14 

that to the table.  And that's part of what we're 15 

trying to do.  So if we're into the issue of $50 a 16 

quarter for this guaranty fund, you know, or $200 a 17 

year, somewhere along the line, for what we're 18 

charging and what the towns are charging, let's see 19 

what we can try to do to work.  I'm not trying --- and 20 

I understand the Builders' Association will try to 21 

work at it and sit down and try to talk about it.  But 22 

the time has come today because there's too much of 23 

electronic transfers.  In my city, the Post-Gazette is 24 

written on a fifth grade level.  And if you look at 25 
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some of the contracts by the time a person signs their 1 

name 10, 15, 20 to 30 times, and all different levels 2 

and different sizes of print, you know, a lot of these 3 

contracts have three or four different sizes of print.  4 

  Most people buy home a two or three times 5 

in their lifetime.  A car every three to five years.  6 

The most major purchase that they're going to deal 7 

with.  We could talk about education, but a person's 8 

only going to do that every five years.  We could 9 

pound on it, we can put it on television, we can fly 10 

airplanes, we could put it on the radio, and how much 11 

attention are they going to pay when it comes on?  12 

They're going to go to the bathroom, go to the kitchen 13 

or do something.  That's part of what of we're talking 14 

about.   15 

  We all try to put out brochures and deal 16 

with it.  Right now, I know I'm worried in my district 17 

about the guy who is going to talking about the 18 

landscaping, about the soffit and the fascia.  He's 19 

going to start knocking on the doors or whatever it 20 

is.  And that's part of the --- you try to educate, 21 

but what happens?  More and more people are coming and 22 

more people are doing it.  So I'm just going to ask 23 

you to take a little consideration.  Let's try to work 24 

with it.   25 
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  I understand about 100, the other one, 1 

507.  All of them have been in our Committee.  And at 2 

the same time, Mr. Shimkus, let's deal with the new 3 

homes just as well to be able to protect the consumer. 4 

It could be your mother.  It could be your aunt.  It 5 

could be a relative in another state.  They get ripped 6 

off, they're going to call you for their business.  7 

Don't worry about the $50.  I'm sorry, I don't want to 8 

sell you too much on it, but that's all I'm saying to 9 

you. 10 

  MR. KURTZ: 11 

  I understand. 12 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 13 

  Okay. 14 

  MR. KURTZ: 15 

  I understand. 16 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 17 

  But thank you.  And I appreciate your 18 

concern about that, because again, you hate to put 19 

yourself out of the pocket for somebody else.  But I'd 20 

like to think that this is an issue of sharing where 21 

it will come back to you ten-fold.   22 

  MR. KURTZ: 23 

  You know, we sympathize wholeheartedly 24 

with the consumer that gets affected by fraud.  We're 25 
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not trying to avoid that.  But we're just trying to 1 

think of what's the best way to do that.  Thank you. 2 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 3 

  Okay.  Well, thank you very much for your 4 

testimony.  Glad that you could step forward to it.  5 

And like I said, I trust you. 6 

  MR. KURTZ: 7 

  Well, we appreciate the opportunity to be 8 

able to speak our feelings on it.  Thank you. 9 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 10 

  Thank you.   11 

  CHAIRMAN GODSHALL: 12 

  If you're still here after the meeting, 13 

I'll tell you, I don’t want to give anybody ideas 14 

what's happening down in my area, in my neck of the 15 

woods.   16 

  MR. KURTZ: 17 

  Okay.  Thank you. 18 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 19 

  Next we have Norman and Renee DeGennaro. 20 

Did I pronounce that right? 21 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 22 

  That's correct.   23 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 24 

  Is somebody else with you? 25 
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  MR. DEGENNARO: 1 

  Actually, my wife couldn't make it.  2 

She's home with our children. 3 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 4 

  Okay. 5 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 6 

  So it will just be me. 7 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 8 

  Thank you very much for coming.  Just 9 

start off with your name and your testimony.  10 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 11 

  Mr. Chairman and members of the 12 

Committee, my name is Norman Degennaro and I 13 

appreciate the opportunity to tell you my story today. 14 

I was born in New Castle, PA, graduated from 15 

Neshannock High School and obtained a B.S. degree from 16 

Youngstown State University.  I work in Washington, 17 

D.C. and live in Sterling, Virginia with my wife, 18 

Renee, and two children.   19 

  In May 2005, we decided to purchase 20 

property in Mercer County, PA with the intent to 21 

someday retire there.  In the meantime, we would build 22 

a small home and vacation there to be near my parents. 23 

We wanted to be in that summer, so using earlier 24 

research on the modular housing on the Internet, we 25 
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decided on an All American Home.  We used All American 1 

Homes' website to find an authorized builder to 2 

deliver our home.  That same month we contracted with 3 

H. Russell Hudson of Hudson Homes and gave him a 4 

deposit of $2,500 for an All American Home and the 5 

property.   6 

  The rest of May and June we went back and 7 

forth with Hudson on the options and final pricing on 8 

the home.  In June 2005 Hudson required another $5,000 9 

for grading on the lot.  We finally agreed on the 10 

price in July 2005.  After verifying that Hudson was 11 

still on All American's website, we signed and 12 

finalized the contract with Hudson.  We provided 13 

Hudson with an initial payment of $34,000.  He had a 14 

prefabricated basement installed in August 2005, and 15 

as per the contract, we provided another $22,000 16 

payment.  The contract stated these deposits would 17 

cover the deliver of the modules for the house.  We 18 

expected to get the house in September, as promised by 19 

Hudson, but it never came.   20 

  In September 2005, my wife began to call 21 

the All American Homes factory to see where our house 22 

was.  And she was told that they had not received an 23 

order from the builder.  Through October and November, 24 

my wife made over 20 phone calls to All American Homes 25 
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and to Hudson.  She made no progress and was getting 1 

very frustrated.  In November, I wrote e-mails to 2 

Hudson, Steve Kerr, the president of All American 3 

Homes, and several other managers asking for help.  I 4 

received no response from Hudson.  And All American 5 

Homes told me that they were sorry, but there was 6 

nothing they could do.   7 

  Now, as you can imagine, we began to 8 

suspect the worst had happened.  We were not going to 9 

get our house as promised, and lose all of our money. 10 

We tried to work things out with Hudson, but he 11 

refused to even respond to us.  We filed a civil 12 

complaint in May 2006 and received a judgment against 13 

Hudson in July.  I'm not even going to go into the 14 

major problems we had trying to collect on our 15 

judgment.  Everything from the sheriff taking three 16 

months to levy, to Hudson assets being joint with his 17 

wife that he had been living apart from for over six 18 

years, to his attorney being Assistant District 19 

Attorney, fraudulent transfers of vehicles and finally 20 

bowling with the judge.  As funny as all this may 21 

seem, we're still talking about real money.  All of 22 

these issues and delays have cost us at least an 23 

additional $50,000.   24 

  Why have we continued to pursue this 25 
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matter?  Well, because after we researched into 1 

Hudson's background, we discovered quite a few people 2 

in Pennsylvania that have been affected by him over 3 

the years.  Many of these people could not afford to 4 

take action and lost their money.  These people, too 5 

numerous to cover, include Ernie, the well installer 6 

who didn't get paid for two wells; Tony, who had to 7 

redo a porch that was not properly installed and cost 8 

him several thousand dollars; Chris, whose house sunk, 9 

lost his job, house and ruined his credit, the 10 

township forced to take over roads not done to spec;  11 

Karen, whose daughter's house had roof problems, the 12 

excavator who's owed $30,000, the lawyer who was not 13 

paid for legal services, the assistant who was not 14 

paid for commissions owed, and finally, a couple who 15 

did not get a proper furnace.  All of these people are 16 

out money, that in many cases, they cannot afford, all 17 

because of one builder.  Of course, many of these 18 

lawsuits were probably written off on taxes, which 19 

means that the Pennsylvania taxpayers most likely foot 20 

the bill.   21 

  During discovery in our lawsuit, it came 22 

to our attention that All American Homes put Hudson on 23 

credit hold prior to him signing the final contract 24 

and taking the large checks from us.  Had we been 25 
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informed by Hudson or if All American had updated 1 

their website and/or warned us, we would not be out 2 

over $100,000.  We filed a criminal complaint that is 3 

currently under investigation by the Pennsylvania 4 

Attorney General's Office.   5 

  Today Hudson is still avoiding his 6 

creditors.  He filed Chapter 13 in July 2007 prior to 7 

our scheduled sheriff's sale.  The Chapter 13 filing 8 

was eventually dismissed.  He then filed Chapter 11 in 9 

October 2007, again, prior to our sheriff's sale.  The 10 

chapter 11 was then converted to Chapter Seven in 11 

December 2007.  We're waiting to see if this filing 12 

gets dismissed as well.  We are also currently in 13 

litigation with All American Homes, which may not be 14 

resolved for years.   15 

  I believe that if House Bill 1821 had 16 

been in place, it would have helped us in several 17 

ways.  First, it clearly defines our situation as 18 

construction fraud.  Next, it is possible that this 19 

builder would have had some prior complaints 20 

documented and/or would have had his certificate of 21 

registration revoked.  We could have called the  22 

toll-free number or checked the registration website 23 

to make sure the builder was in good standing prior to 24 

doing business with them.  Also, All American Homes 25 
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probably would not choose to list builders on their 1 

website that did not have a proper certificate of 2 

registration in the first place.   3 

  If you need a license to hunt, fish, cut 4 

hair, practice law or sell cars, why should you not 5 

have one to construct a home?  After all, buying a 6 

home is the single largest purchase most people make 7 

in their lifetime, and House Bill 1821 will help 8 

protect them.  Thank you again for letting me tell my 9 

story.   10 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 11 

  What you're out of, does that include the 12 

attorney fees?  13 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 14 

  It does, yes. 15 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 16 

  Has there been a class action suit 17 

against this person at all? 18 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 19 

  No.  No, there hasn't.  There actually is 20 

a class action suit against the company, All American 21 

Homes, in Kentucky. 22 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 23 

  How did you find out about the other 24 

people that this guy ripped off? 25 
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  MR. DEGENNARO: 1 

  It's kind of funny.  I joke with my wife 2 

that she's called everybody in Crawford County and 3 

Mercer County and Lawrence County one by one through 4 

the phone book.  So basically, when we get in contact 5 

with one person that's had problems with him, they're 6 

more than happy to point us to ten more.  And so she's 7 

just been making phone calls.  She also had researched 8 

the cases in the lower courts there.  And it's not 9 

easy to assemble this information.  I mean, she had to 10 

go to court to court to court to find out whether 11 

there were even complaints.  And a lot of time these 12 

records aren't kept or maintained. 13 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 14 

  So you're out of $100,000.  How many 15 

counties did this guy ---? 16 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 17 

  Well, he lives in Crawford County.  We 18 

built a home in Mercer County.  My family is 19 

originally from Lawrence County.  So all of these 20 

counties. 21 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 22 

  So it's all out and around clear in the 23 

northeast? 24 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 25 
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  That's right. 1 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 2 

  Northwest. 3 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 4 

  Northwest. 5 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 6 

  You've heard that contractor talk about 7 

we need more education. 8 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 9 

  Yeah. 10 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 11 

  How would more education have helped you, 12 

being that you are an educated person? 13 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 14 

  Thank you.  You know, I don't know if I'm 15 

a special case or not.  We are out of state, so it's 16 

not easy for us to, you know, be here and around and 17 

to understand what a builder's reputation is.  We had 18 

to rely on third-party information.  In this case it 19 

was All American Homes' website.  I assumed that if 20 

it's an authorized builder, that authorized meant in 21 

good standing.  So there was a certain level of trust 22 

that I put in them at that point.   23 

  Also, I had researched All American 24 

Homes.  They're the number one modular home builder in 25 
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the United States.  You know, I mean, there's only so 1 

much.  Now, as far as calling all the courts, that 2 

wasn't something we do when we contract with somebody. 3 

Of course, in hindsight now, I'll be little bit more 4 

diligent, I guess. 5 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 6 

  In dealing with the house away from the 7 

--- you entered expenses for the attorney or whatever 8 

it is.  How much was that? 9 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 10 

  Approximately $50,000, just what we're 11 

out. 12 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 13 

  What are you going to do? 14 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 15 

  Well, you know, obviously, for me it's 16 

not about the money here.   17 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 18 

  But you want to invest for long term or 19 

later on when you can back and be with your parents? 20 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 21 

  That's right.  So ---. 22 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 23 

  Coming here, being in Pennsylvania, 24 

paying taxes? 25 
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  MR. DEGENNARO: 1 

  Listen, if this was about the money, 2 

okay, I would have cut loose already and written this 3 

off.  But this is about we're right.  We did not get, 4 

to me, treated appropriately by the District 5 

Attorneys.  I mean, I understand now a little bit more 6 

why they're telling us it's civil and they can't do 7 

anything about it.  We had complained earlier to the 8 

Attorney General.  It wasn't until we got our 9 

congressman from Virginia, Frank Wolf, involved that 10 

we really started getting taken seriously by the 11 

Attorney General's Office. 12 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 13 

  And you can see what we're trying to do 14 

with the issue of $50 for the fund. 15 

  MR. DEGNRARO: 16 

  Right. 17 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 18 

  Which, in a sense, in your case, you 19 

would have been able --- you couldn't recoup the 20 

attorney's fees, but you would be able to recoup the 21 

payments that you paid to build, --- 22 

  MR. DEGNRARO: 23 

  I understand. 24 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 25 
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  --- and be able to pick another reputable 1 

builder, which might have been Mr. Kurtz here.  That's 2 

what I'm getting to. 3 

  MR. DEGNRARO: 4 

  That's right.  And actually, we did pick 5 

another builder.  We picked an Amish builder this 6 

time.  The most honest man I've ever met.  He's a 7 

great guy. 8 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 9 

  Chairman Godshall? 10 

  CHAIRMAN GODSHALL: 11 

  You know, I think --- I have a brother 12 

that a couple of years back built a fairly large log 13 

house from a kit, exactly the same way you did, and he 14 

did the exact same thing.  Fortunately for him, his 15 

worked out.  On the website and on information 16 

supplied by the people that he bought the house from, 17 

the kit from, he was given a builder's name in that 18 

area, which was the Mansfield, Pennsylvania area.  And 19 

they said, this is who we have that could take care of 20 

this whole situation for you.   21 

  So you automatically, in those cases, 22 

would think that, in your case, All American Homes or 23 

in his case, you know, he had --- you know, they would 24 

have checked this man out and would have done some 25 
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homework to stop this thing before it spread across 1 

three or four counties.  You know, I just can't see 2 

how they could keep a guy like this on their website. 3 

It's unbelievable to me.   4 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 5 

  Well, as a matter of fact, they left him 6 

on the website until September of '06. 7 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 8 

  Now, see, with this bill, you would have 9 

been able to call, as well as anybody else would have 10 

been able to call to see.  Representative Shimkus? 11 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 12 

  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I want to thank 13 

you because from the get go you have been in 14 

communication with my staff, and I just feel so bad 15 

for you.  I keep peeling this down to the consumer, as 16 

you've heard me, you know, because this hits you and 17 

your family.  Now, this may be a different kind of 18 

question, but through this whole process, what kind of 19 

stress has this put on your family? 20 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 21 

  A tremendous amount of stress.  There's 22 

not a day that goes by that we're not thinking about 23 

this.  Okay.  There's not a day that goes by that 24 

we're not getting some new legal paper, because 25 
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obviously we're still in litigation with All American 1 

Homes.  I mean, I don't know how things are going to 2 

turn out. 3 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 4 

  Part of your testimony scared me even 5 

more.  And that is that when Mr. Kurtz talked about, 6 

well, education and people need to research and find 7 

out, you know, Chairman Preston talked about, you 8 

know, people don't have the time to go into great 9 

detail.  It scares me that a lot of people think the 10 

Internet is a great, reputable source of information. 11 

And, you know, I mean, the Internet is not necessarily 12 

always the most reliable.  And I think a lot of people 13 

think, well, if it's on the Internet, like, if it's in 14 

print, it must be okay.  And that's not necessarily 15 

true.  And I just wondered how many more people out 16 

there are thinking their research is Internet based. 17 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 18 

  Well, that really wasn't the case.  I'm 19 

in that industry, so I understand the source of 20 

information.  And in this case the source was the 21 

company that's manufacturing homes, which is, like I 22 

said, the number one company in the nation, so I had 23 

no reason to believe otherwise in this case. 24 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 25 
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  Well, I think your testimony is going to 1 

help push House Bill 1821 forward, and so I really 2 

appreciate your courage and your willingness to 3 

testify and all the information that you have shared 4 

with us.  Thank you very much. 5 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 6 

  Representative Reichley.  We have a chair 7 

here for you. 8 

  REPRESENTATIVE REICHLEY: 9 

  Sorry for being so late. 10 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 11 

  Representative Brennan. 12 

  REPRESENTATVIE BRENNAN: 13 

  Just quickly.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 14 

The prior testifier, Mr. Kurtz ---. 15 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 16 

  Don't leave yet. 17 

  REPRESENTATIVE BRENNAN: 18 

  Thank you for your testimony.  And I wish 19 

you the best of luck under very difficult, obviously, 20 

difficult circumstances.  But the prior testifier, Mr. 21 

Kurtz, mentioned about the consumer that's not doing 22 

their homework and supporting --- you know, if victims 23 

would verify credentials and check references.  I 24 

mean, the fact of the matter is, if you had done that 25 
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with Mr. Hudson, I'm sure he could have provided you 1 

with three either bogus or a handful of customers that 2 

either were satisfied or he made up. 3 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 4 

  Well, I have yet to meet anybody that 5 

would provide me with a negative reference. 6 

  REPRESENTATIVE BRENNAN: 7 

  Yeah.  Nobody is going to so --- so the 8 

referencing is not going to ---. 9 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 10 

  That's not going to help me.  And I mean, 11 

remember our circumstances, too.  We're working long 12 

distance.   13 

  REPRESENTATVIE BRENNAN: 14 

  Yes.  Did you ever meet this --- when you 15 

signed the contract, did you ever see him face to 16 

face? 17 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 18 

  Oh, yeah.  No, I didn't.  Did travel to 19 

sign the contract with him. 20 

  REPRESENTATIVE BRENNAN: 21 

  But it would have been very easy for him 22 

to provide if you asked.  When someone goes for a job, 23 

you don't list as a reference somebody who fired you.  24 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 25 
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  That's right.  I mean, there was a huge 1 

façade, all right, that was going on here.  I mean, 2 

there's a lot of, obviously, many more facets to the 3 

story than I conveyed here.  At the top of the hill 4 

there were two brand-new homes that he had just put 5 

in.  So, you know, I mean, they were posted for sale. 6 

And we went through one of the homes and the lady 7 

there was raving about his work.  Now, you know, it 8 

turns out that ---. 9 

  REPRESENTATIVE BRENNAN: 10 

  Who was it? 11 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 12 

  It turns out that this was actually was 13 

the site of, you may have heard throughout this case, 14 

this Dr. Eglesten, who was convicted in an OxyContin 15 

drug ring by the Attorney General.  And then it turns 16 

out also that they were living in this house, there 17 

was never an occupancy permit and he was renting it to 18 

them or leasing it to own.  That was in violation of 19 

his financing contract with them.  So I mean, there's 20 

just layer after layer of issue here.  But to us when 21 

we met her the first time, very nice lady, you know, 22 

and we had no idea, at that time. 23 

  REPRESENTATIVE BRENNAN: 24 

  And I notice, Mr. Shimkus, Representative 25 
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Shimkus, when you said about not believing everything 1 

on the Internet or the newspapers, you didn't 2 

reference the TV station.  Everything that's said on 3 

the TV station ---. 4 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 5 

  TV, newspapers, too.  I'm hoping that 6 

this will be answer to you.  Because how long ago was 7 

this, five years, four years? 8 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 9 

  This was in 2005. 10 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 11 

   2005.  But there's an issue --- like you 12 

said, you're out $100,000.  There's nothing you can do 13 

about it.  You still want to do the house here?  Is 14 

that what you decided to do? 15 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 16 

  Yeah, yeah. 17 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 18 

  Was the cost any more? 19 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 20 

  It was about the same. 21 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 22 

  About the same. 23 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 24 

  So, obviously, we don't ---. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 1 

  So you're spending an extra $50,000 on 2 

top of that? 3 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 4 

  That's right. 5 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 6 

  Well, really sorry for what has ensued.  7 

This gives you the perfect thing, right there.  You 8 

know, even though you had a personal reference --- 9 

see, that goes also to the issue that we've talked 10 

about in previous hearings, about the cost of 11 

inspections.  If you pay for --- some towns do it and 12 

some towns don't.  You know, even when you're dealing 13 

with the occupancy issue, that's one of the things  14 

---.  Very sorry about that.  But thank you very much 15 

for coming and we really appreciate it, especially 16 

your stick-to-itiveness. 17 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 18 

  Well, we're still in it, so we're going 19 

to fight it to the end. 20 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 21 

  Thank you very much. 22 

  MR. DEGENNARO: 23 

  Thank you. 24 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 25 
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  Before we come to our next --- don't want 1 

to save it to the last.  We have testimony that was 2 

submitted by Tom Corbett, the Attorney General, Office 3 

of the Attorney General.  So I'm going to read it just 4 

for the people word for word; all right?  Dear 5 

Representative Preston, thank you for your invitation 6 

to testify before the House Consumer Affairs Committee 7 

on House Bill 1821, the New Home Construction Consumer 8 

Protection Act sponsored by Representative Shimkus.  I 9 

appreciate your willingness to accept my written 10 

comments in lieu of formal testimony.   11 

  As you may be aware, I have strongly 12 

advocated for state registration of home improvement 13 

contracts along with specific requirements for form 14 

and content of home improvement contracts as well as 15 

criminal penalties for perpetrators of home 16 

improvement fraud.  Home improvement complaints 17 

consistently rank within the top ten of the complaint 18 

categories kept by the Office of Attorney General, 19 

Bureau of Consumer Protection.  In 2007, complaints 20 

against home improvement contractors ranked seventh 21 

among the complaint categories kept by the Bureau.  In 22 

that same year, complaints filed by senior citizens 23 

against home improvement contractors ranked fourth on 24 

the list. 25 
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  While the Bureau does not maintain a 1 

separate complaint category for new home construction, 2 

historically, complaints filed against contractors 3 

more often than not involve home improvements rather 4 

that new home construction.  Senior citizens who may 5 

have owned their homes for an extended period of time 6 

are more likely to find themselves in need of home 7 

improvements rather than in need of purchasing a new 8 

home.  This may be a factor as to why home improvement 9 

complaints rank higher for seniors than others who 10 

file complaints.   11 

  Oftentimes, unscrupulous home improvement 12 

contractors use cell phones, operate without a permit, 13 

without a permanent, physical business location, 14 

working out of nothing more than their trucks.  When a 15 

complaint is filed and the contractor cannot be 16 

located by the Bureau of Mediation, enforcement 17 

efforts are severally hampered.  A state registration 18 

of contractors would secure detail contact 19 

information, increasing the chances that a contractor 20 

could be located for enforcement purposes. 21 

  Enactment of House Bill 1821 is a worthy 22 

goal toward offering protection for consumers who are 23 

building new homes.  I cannot stress enough, however, 24 

the importance of consumer protection for our citizens 25 
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who contract for home improvements.  And I will 1 

continue to advocate for a Home Improvement Consumer 2 

Protection Act. 3 

  I wanted to read that just for the 4 

record, so all the people in here can tell their 5 

neighbors what we're trying to do here and also for 6 

the media.  Next we have Sean Cleary, who's the Field 7 

Manager of Region Five, International Association of 8 

Plumbing and Mechanical Officials.  How are you doing 9 

today, sir? 10 

  MR. CLEARY: 11 

  Good.  Thank you very much for allowing 12 

me to speak.   13 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 14 

  Sit down.  Kindly identify yourself for 15 

the record. 16 

  MR. CLEARY: 17 

  Yes.  My name is Sean Cleary.  I come 18 

here today wearing a number of hats.  I'm a licensed 19 

master plumber in the City of Scranton.  I also sit on 20 

the City of Scranton Plumbing Advisory Board.  I am 21 

member of Plumbers and Pipefitters Local 524, which 22 

has a 12-county region, which includes both Lackawanna 23 

and Luzerne County.  I serve as the Local's training 24 

instructor, teaching both journeyman and apprentice 25 
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plumbers and pipefitters the proper way to work in the 1 

construction industry.  I am also the International 2 

Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials' 3 

Field Manager for the State of Pennsylvania.  I am 4 

here to voice support for House Bill 1821.   5 

  As someone who has worked in the 6 

construction field for the last 30 years, I have seen 7 

many horror stories in home construction firsthand.  8 

The State of Pennsylvania was very late in the game in 9 

passing Act 45, the Uniform Construction Code.  The 10 

registration of home builders is long overdue.  The 11 

industry has had many years to try to police itself, 12 

and in many cases has failed.  Builders and 13 

contractors must be held responsible for the work that 14 

they do.  The development of uniform requirements for 15 

contractors throughout the State of Pennsylvania 16 

should begin today.   17 

  In addition to this bill, I would like to 18 

ask you support House Bill 1776, which would require 19 

the state licensing of contractors.  Licensing and 20 

certification are important pieces of consumer 21 

protection.  Contracted licensing and registration 22 

assures the community and the consumer that the 23 

contractors and trades people are accountable for the 24 

work that they perform.   25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

68

  In listening to the testimony today 1 

concerning out of area or out of state contractors, 2 

passing a state licensing bill would allow the 3 

consumers to know that the contractor has, at the very 4 

least, met state requirements.  Contractors that fail 5 

to meet the state standard could have their licenses 6 

suspended or revoked.  I would like to thank you for 7 

the opportunity to come here and speak to you today.  8 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 9 

  Thank you very much, Mr. Cleary.  What 10 

you brought up is very important, because we've been 11 

going around and looking at what we call 12 

infrastructure.  In your profession, it was roughly 13 

guesstimated that about 50 percent of the plumbers in 14 

the next five years are going to be retiring because 15 

of what happened in the '60s and the '70s when the 16 

towns started to expand and suburbs started to really 17 

grow out.   18 

  So we're looking at, you know, how long 19 

does it take you to gain experience?  And we're 20 

looking at an awful lot of the contractors and people 21 

who have come in maybe for a year or two and then 22 

going to their own business.  That concerns me to the 23 

point of what you're talking about.  Because it takes 24 

years for you to really get the wide breadth of 25 
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experience as well.  And they say one person can 1 

create a problem for hundreds of them. 2 

  MR. CLEARY: 3 

  Yes.  I agree with you wholeheartedly. 4 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 5 

  You also read about the issues about 6 

dealing with the fund and you also heard the comments 7 

about the permits.  You paid for --- you have to get a 8 

separate permit, too, from almost every town that you 9 

make a new business in.   10 

  MR. CLEARY: 11 

  Yes.  Different license, different 12 

permit. 13 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 14 

  Now, how do you feel about it? 15 

  MR. CLEARY:  16 

  I personally think that, as I said, the 17 

state was late to the game in passing Act 45.  But if 18 

you had state licensing, then everyone would have a 19 

state license.  I wouldn't have to license for 20 

Scranton and Wilkes-Barre and Wilkes-Barre Township if 21 

you did have a state license.  I think this 22 

registration program is a very, very good thing 23 

because I really do think you do have to hold people 24 

accountable.  I mean, our apprenticeship program is 25 
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five year.  We have guys in school two nights a week 1 

for five years, and plus working on the job.  And 2 

that's not enough time, in my opinion, to have someone 3 

that is ready after five years to go into business for 4 

himself.   5 

  And in a lot of locations in the state, 6 

there's no licensing requirement at all.  So the home 7 

builder, he made some good points, but in a lot of the 8 

other trades, you have a general contractor who subs 9 

the work out to an electrical contractor and a sheet 10 

metal contractor.  You have to have some way to make 11 

sure that everybody has the skills they need to 12 

construct houses. 13 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 14 

  So this also applies --- talking with the 15 

electricity people the other day, in the next five 16 

years, roughly 40 to 50 percent of the electricians, 17 

in a sense, a lot of them are going to be retiring 18 

just as well.  So when you start seeing that 19 

happening, that's a dramatic push of people coming in 20 

that it takes --- like you said, people may not 21 

realize it, but to me, your profession and an 22 

electrician's profession, if you had to go through the 23 

apprenticeship program, I think it's probably more 24 

difficult than going through four years of some kind 25 
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of liberal arts college.  Some people may get angry 1 

with that statement, but, you know, you can go get a 2 

liberal arts degree and never have to deal with math. 3 

  MR. CLEARY: 4 

  That's true.  5 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 6 

  Some of the other basics.  And you're 7 

probably one of the few professions where you learn 8 

how to also use the metric system.  We're the only 9 

country in the world that doesn't use it.  And I don't 10 

know what we know that everybody else doesn't.  It 11 

gives you an advantage that you can go almost any 12 

place in the world and be able to do your profession 13 

whether you can speak the language or not.  I respect 14 

the trades themselves.  And people don't think about 15 

those types of things as well.  They're more 16 

interested in what we call our uniform ---.  17 

Representative Shimkus? 18 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 19 

  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I'd just like 20 

to thank you for your support and your testimony.  I 21 

serve as Majority Secretary of the Labor Relations 22 

Committee and I've gotten a lot of input from trade 23 

unions and labor.  And I really appreciate their 24 

advice.  25 
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  I think one of the things that is of 1 

interest to you in this bill, in the contract process, 2 

that is policed.  There can't be provisions where the 3 

general contractor sneaks in a line that says, well, 4 

we're not really responsible to pay the subs.  It goes 5 

back to the home builder.  And so it kind of make sure 6 

that if there are any liens by subcontractors against 7 

the new home builder, they would have to be reported 8 

to the Attorney General.  So we know that everybody is 9 

getting paid and everybody's up front.  So, you know, 10 

you're a consumer, too.  And we've got things built in 11 

there for all consumers.  Thank you very much.  Thank 12 

you, Mr. Chairman. 13 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 14 

  Representative Reichley, who is from 15 

Lehigh County. 16 

  REPRESENTATIVE REICHLEY: 17 

  Very late.  Sorry.  Could I ask you a 18 

question maybe about --- you need to get a license in 19 

Scranton and Wilkes-Barre.  Do you have to pay a 20 

separate fee in those municipalities to get that 21 

license? 22 

  MR. CLEARY: 23 

  Yes, you do. 24 

  REPRESENTATIVE REICHLEY: 25 
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  So statewide certification would allow 1 

you to just consolidate all the requirements and 2 

probably consolidate the revenues that you would have 3 

to put out as well? 4 

  MR. CLEARY: 5 

  Yes.  I mean, it would be a good thing 6 

because, as I said, every township and borough has 7 

their own licensing schedule fee.  And some require a 8 

test to receive the license, some don't.  They just 9 

charge a fee for that.  But if you did have it 10 

statewide --- and I have to say the organizations that 11 

I represent wholeheartedly would endorse even 12 

journeymen licensing for the people that worked on the 13 

job.  Because, you know, if you give a contractor a 14 

license, that doesn't ensure that the people that are 15 

actually working on the job are qualified to do the 16 

work.  So if you have journeyman licensing and then 17 

you have set up apprenticeship programs, you know that 18 

everybody involved ---.   19 

  You made a very good point.  The average 20 

age in our organization at Local 524 is 48 years old. 21 

We are working hard, bringing in 20 or 30 --- we just 22 

took in 42 new apprentices.  So we are trying to get 23 

into that because construction is doing fairly well 24 

commercially in this area. 25 
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  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 1 

  I figure if maybe we went to the 2 

statewide certification, the fee could be a little 3 

higher and then use the extra money to put back into 4 

vocational training, because the problem a lot of 5 

contractors are seeing down our way is, for better or 6 

worse, guidance counselors are not, I'll say, giving 7 

equal time to kids that consider going into a skilled 8 

trades.  Everything is more or less geared toward, if 9 

not a four-year college track, then going to a 10 

community college program.  A lot of the HVAC folks 11 

electricians and plumbers are desperately in need of 12 

having younger people look more seriously at those 13 

professions. 14 

  MR. CLEARY: 15 

  And actually, when you create --- when 16 

you finish our apprenticeship program at the Local 17 

524, you do get out with an Associate's Degree.  So we 18 

do call it the skilled trades for a reason.  I mean, 19 

we really do push the education.  And at the end of 20 

your five years, with a history class and an English 21 

class, you'll actually end up with an Associate's 22 

Degree. 23 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 24 

  Chairman Godshall? 25 
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  CHAIRMAN GODSHALL: 1 

  I had an electrical statewide licensing 2 

bill that I'd worked on for a couple years at this 3 

point, and unfortunately, Philadelphia electrical 4 

people didn't agree with ones in Pittsburgh when we 5 

were trying to put the whole thing together.  But I 6 

have a fairly large electrical contractor in my area 7 

that he told me that he spends --- he has one 8 

individual in the month of December that spends the 9 

whole month going around township to township to 10 

township to fill out the forms and in some cases take 11 

a test, which nobody reads and pay the fees.  But the 12 

fees weren't as a much of an obstacle as it was the 13 

time of trying to get into those municipalities to get 14 

a license from each and every one of them, which 15 

serves absolutely no purpose except that is a revenue 16 

generator and so forth.   17 

  To me, a state license, you know, is the 18 

way out of this whole thing.  I had also in that bill 19 

that there would be a fund, you know, to help people 20 

that were getting ripped off and so forth.  That was a 21 

major problem.  The other major problem was a 22 

grandfather clause for people that have been in the 23 

electrician business for the last 20 years.  And 24 

that's where the dispute came in, I guess, between 25 
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Philadelphia and Pittsburgh on this grandfather 1 

clause.  Somebody who's been an electrician, hasn't 2 

gone to school, don't know if they could pass, you 3 

know, one of the license --- doesn’t know how to wire 4 

a house.  But, you know, there was other problems that 5 

we come up with.   6 

  But for the life of me, the same way, I 7 

couldn't figure out how you wouldn't want to take to 8 

do one license rather than, you know, a multitude.  9 

And my son used to work for Waste Management.  And 10 

that was a disaster.  They had to have stickers on 11 

each side of the truck for each township that they 12 

were in.  You could have a half empty truck in this 13 

township and a full truck over here, but you couldn't 14 

go across the other side of the street because it was 15 

a horrible fine just to cross the street.  And these 16 

local individual licensing operations just make it 17 

tough for everybody.   18 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 19 

  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.  And I 20 

want to thank you.  And the important thing  --- we 21 

have an awful lot of young men in the next two years 22 

that are going to be coming back from the Middle East 23 

and around the Pacific rim that have been living, you 24 

know, serving their country in harm's way.  I'm not 25 
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talking about just the people --- I'm talking about 1 

the full-time soldiers just as well.  We have a 2 

workforce that's going to be coming back, and this gap 3 

is there.   4 

  And you bring up a very important part 5 

about trying to come up with something about 6 

effectively customized job training, not just putting 7 

somebody on the spot where they're not --- it's about 8 

meaningful wages and the job.  This is something that 9 

I think that we need to talk about.  Because we've had 10 

the hearings on dealing the infrastructure on some of 11 

the other different plans where there's wastewater, 12 

and this comes into the experience within the homes.  13 

Because this deals with new hospitals, schools and 14 

other different forms of buildings and of the 15 

infrastructure and also the homes themselves.   16 

  I didn't realize until I had really spent 17 

some time down south that the homes there don't have 18 

basements.  And I couldn't figure out why, you know. 19 

They're more sprawled out.  I was talking to the 20 

executive director.  And it just dawned on me, I 21 

guess, because of the freeze cycles, you know, our 22 

pipes have to be so low.  And that's one of the 23 

reasons we have basements.  I'm still trying to find a 24 

way to avoid it.   25 
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  But your profession is very well 1 

respected, in my opinion.  We're going to see what we 2 

try to do to make it a little bit more --- easier to 3 

be able to work with you.  Because like you said, 42 4 

people, and how many out of the 42 do you think will 5 

finally cross the line doing the five years? 6 

  MR. CLEARY: 7 

  We usually have at least an 80 percent 8 

graduation rate.  That's our average.  And just on 9 

another note, as you said about the guys coming home 10 

from Iraq and that, the building trades nationally 11 

have instituted a program they call Helmets to Hard 12 

Hats.  And what it does is anyone who comes back from 13 

the service is automatically is allowed to enter the 14 

apprenticeship program of their choice based on their 15 

service in the military. 16 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 17 

  Thank you very much. 18 

  MR. CLEARY: 19 

  Thank you for allowing me to speak.  I 20 

appreciated it. 21 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 22 

  Any other comment from the members? 23 

  REPRESENTATIVE SHIMKUS: 24 

  I would just like to say thank you to the 25 
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Chairman and to the Committee members for being here 1 

and to staff and to my staff as well, and to all of 2 

you who came out to testify and to be here.  Thank you 3 

to Marci for her cooperation and help in putting this 4 

together.  And I hope House Bill 1821 moves forward.  5 

Thank you.  6 

  CHAIRMAN PRESTON: 7 

  And thank you very much.  And we are so 8 

adjourned. 9 

                    * * * * * * * * 10 

HEARING CONCLUDED AT 11:45 A.M. 11 

* * * * * * * * 12 
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